
THE TOPEKA LANDMARKS COMMISSION MEETING 
 

Holliday Office Building 
620 SE Madison Ave., Holliday Conference Room, 1st Floor 

 

A G E N D A  
Thursday, February 9, 2017 

5:30 PM 
 

I. Roll Call 
 

II. Approval of Minutes – January 12, 2017  Minutes 
 

III. CLGR17-03 by Architect One, LLC, requesting a Certificate of Appropriateness for the 
removal of the exterior façade on property located at 913 S. Kansas Avenue, within the 
boundary of the South Kansas Avenue Commercial Historic District.   
 

IV. CLGR17-04 by Architect One, LLC, requesting a Certificate of Appropriateness for the 
rehabilitation and renovation of the 2nd level interior of property located at 913 S. 
Kansas Avenue, within the boundary of the South Kansas Avenue Commercial Historic 
District.   
 

V. CLGR17-05 by Architect One, LLC, requesting a Certificate of Appropriateness for the 
replacement of the lower façade of property located at 913 S. Kansas Avenue, within 
the boundary of the South Kansas Avenue Commercial Historic District. 
 

VI. Other Items 
 

VII. Adjournment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADA Notice:  For special accommodations for this event, please contact the Planning 
Department at 785-368-3728 at least three working days in advance. 



TOPEKA LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

M I N U T E S 

Thursday, January 12, 2017 

Holliday Office Building   l   620 SE Madison  l  1st Floor Holliday Conference Room 

 

--- D R A F T --- 

I. Roll Call 

Members Present: Cheyenne Anderson, Mark Burenheide, Jeff Carson, Bryan Falk, David Heit, Donna 

Rae Pearson, Paul Post , Grant Sourk, Christine Steinkeuhler  (9) 

Members Absent: None   

Staff Present: Tim Paris, Dan Warner 

II. Approval of Minutes – December 8, 2016   

Mr. David Heit moved approval of the minutes, noting a correction under Item #3 where he was 

referred to as Ms. Heit, as opposed to Mr. Heit. Ms. Pearson seconded the motion. The motion was 

APPROVED by a vote of 9‐0‐0.  

III. Welcome to Cheyenne Anderson – Mr. Sourk welcomed Cheyenne Anderson as the newest appointed 

member of the Topeka Landmarks Commission. Ms. Anderson introduced herself, and said that she is 

an architect with HTK Architects, specializing in interiors. Ms. Anderson further offered a correction to 

her phone number listed under the Landmarks Commission’s contact information.  

IV. Nomination of 2017 Landmarks Commission Chair – Donna Rae Pearson nominated Grant Sourk for a 

second term as Chair of the Topeka Landmarks Commission. The nomination was seconded by Mr. 

Carson. The nomination was APPROVED  by a vote of 9‐0‐0.  

V. Nomination of Landmarks Commission Vice‐Chair – Paul Post offered to serve a second term as Vice 

Chair of the Landmarks Commission. Absent any other nominations, Mr. Post as Vice‐Chair was 

APPROVED by a vote of 9‐0‐0.  

VI. Appointment of Third Member to the Design Review Committee – Mr. Sourk asked the Commission 

members if anyone would like to serve as the 3rd member of the Commission’s Design Review 

Committee (DRC). Mr. Paris said that the Committee has reserved a standing meeting time of each 

Tuesday at 4:00 p.m. to review early‐stage projects, and to provide guidance on meeting the Secretary 

of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation to property owners and their design professionals. Mark 

Burenheide offered to serve as the 3rd member of the DRC. There being no further volunteers, Mr. 

Burenheide was APPROVED by consent.  

VII. CLGR16‐20 by Architect One, LLC, proposing the replacement of the 2nd‐level facades of 916 and 920 

S. Kansas Avenue, and alterations to windows of the Cyrus Hotel tower –  Tim Paris read from the Staff 

report the history of this project, stating that the Landmarks Commission has previously approved the 

removal of the upper‐facades of these buildings conditional to the addition of details above the 2nd‐level 

windows. Mr. Paris also introduced proposed changes to the previously approved alignment of the west‐



TOPEKA LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

M I N U T E S 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

--- D R A F T --- 21.12.2017 

facing windows within the tower to be constructed behind the two facades also under review. Mr. Paris 

indicated that each issue should be voted on separately. Scott Gales, the project architect, presented 

the changes to the Commission, indicating that all materials that were approved by the Commission 

previously would remain in place for both the facades and the tower. With regard to the 2nd‐level 

facades, Mr. Post moved approval of the plans as presented, stating that the plans would not damage or 

destroy the historic integrity of the surrounding South Kansas Avenue Commercial Historic District. Mr. 

Burenheide seconded this motion. The motion was APPROVED by a vote of 9‐0‐0. Mr. Post then 

offered a motion that the proposed changes to the alignment of the windows within the west‐face of 

the Cyrus Hotel tower would not damage or destroy the integrity of the surrounding South Kansas 

Avenue Commercial Historic District. This motion was seconded by Mr. Sourk. The motion was 

APPROVED by a vote of 9‐0‐0. 

VIII. CLGR17‐01 by Sprout Communications, proposing the placement of a projecting sign on the 2nd‐level 

façade of property located at 728 S. Kansas Avenue – Mr. Paris read from the Staff report, stating that 

the proposed sign was only a part of the larger renovation of the property, and that the owner is 

considering the use of historic preservation tax credits for the exterior and interior portions of the 

overall project. Mr. Paris said that the sign would be internally illuminated, and was in keeping with 

projecting signs that were historically used within the greater South Kansas Avenue Commercial 

Historic District. Caleb Asher, owner of the property and Sprout Communications, spoke on behalf of 

the project, and offered to answer any questions from the Commission. After a brief discussion of the 

illumination of the proposed sign, Bryan Falk moved that the placement and design of the sign on the 

property would not damage or destroy the historic integrity of the surrounding historic district. The 

motion was seconded by Ms. Steinkeuhler. The motion was APPROVED by a vote of 9‐0‐0. 

IX. CLGR17‐02 by the Topeka Planning Commission, proposing the reclassification of all properties 

currently zoned C‐5 Downtown Commercial District TO D‐1 Downtown District, including the area 

designated as the South Kansas Avenue Commercial Historic District ‐  Dan Warner presented the Staff 

Report, and indicated that action was required by the Landmarks Commission to determine that the 

proposed reclassification will not damage or destroy the historic integrity of the South Kansas Avenue 

Commercial Historic District. Mr. Warner said that the D‐1 Downtown District would have design 

guidelines that are applicable outside the historic district, and that the previously adopted Downtown 

Topeka Design Guidelines would be applicable to those properties within the historic district. Mr. 

Warner further said that regulations governing signs would default to theD‐1 Zoning standards for size 

and placement criteria, but would revert to the Downtown Topeka Design Guidelines for material and 

aesthetic considerations. Mr. Warner said that the D‐1 Downtown District was already adopted, but has 

not yet been widely applied to properties within Downtown Topeka. This action, he said, would  apply 

the D‐1 zoning classification to all currently designated C‐5 Downtown Commercial properties. Mr. Heit 

made the motion that the proposed reclassification from C‐5 Downtown Commercial District TO the D‐1 



TOPEKA LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

M I N U T E S 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

--- D R A F T --- 31.12.2017 

Downtown District would not damage or destroy the historic integrity of the South Kansas Avenue 

Commercial Historic District. The motion was seconded by Mr. Falk. The motion was APPROVED by a 

vote of 9‐0‐0.  

X. Adjournment at 6:35PM 





















MECH.
CHASE

DN

DN

DW

WH

FURN

WASH

DRY
R
EF

.

UPDN

DN

UP

LOFT

APARTMENT

CONCEPT

PLANS

A
 P

ro
po

se
d 

Te
na

nt
 R

em
od

el
 o

f:

PH
O

N
E:

 7
85

 / 
27

1-
70

10
90

6 
S 

K
A

N
SA

S 
A

V
E.

 #
20

0
TO

PE
K

A
, K

A
N

SA
S 

 6
66

12
FA

X
: 7

85
 / 

27
1-

70
20

91
3 

S 
K

an
sa

s A
ve

To
pe

ka
, K

an
sa

s
W

W
W

.A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TO
N

EP
A

.C
O

M






















	1 Feb 9 2017 agenda
	2 Jan 12 LC Minutes
	3 CLGR07-03 Revised Staff Report
	4 CLGR17004 Staff Report
	5 CLGR17-04 Floor Plan
	6 CLGR07-05 Staff Report
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	913 S Kansas Ave -Floor Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Work (2)


	Blank Page

